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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 38t Annual General Meeting of the Members of Gravity (India) Limited
(“the Company”) will be held on Tuesday, 30t September, 2025 at 1:00 p.m. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) ONLY to transact the business as set out
in this Notice. The Registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for this Meeting.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item no. 1: Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone) for the Financial Year
ended 31st March, 2025, and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2: Retirement by Rotation

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Varun Rasiklal Thakkar (DIN: 00894145) who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Item No.:3 : Appointment of Statutory Auditor

To Consider and Approve Appointment of CA Kamlesh Dave, DDM & Associates ( FRN - 133446W) as a
statutory Auditor of the Company for the period of Five years from Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30.

Item No.:4 : Appointment of Secretarial Auditor
To Consider and Approve Appointment of CS Krina Shah , Company Secretary in Practice ( ACS - 66521,

CP No. - 27764) as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the period of Five years from Financial Year
2025-26 to 2029-30.

Item No.: 5 : To Regularize Appointment of Manoj Ramavat

To regularize appointment of Manoj Kanhiyalal Ramavat (DIN: 11039927) who has been appointed as an
additional Director of the Company and designate him as Managing Director.’

Item No.: 6 : To Regularize Appointment of Ambika Jindal

To regularize appointment of Ambika Jindal (DIN: 10310252) who has been appointed as an additional
Director of the Company and designate her as Non-Executive Independent Director.’

Item No.: 7 : To Regularize Appointment of Tushar Rai Sharma

To regularize appointment of Tushar Rai Sharma (DIN: 09211414) who has been appointed as an
additional Director of the Company and designate him as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

Item No.: 8 : To Regularize Appointment of Komal Hardikkumar Patel

To regularize appointment Komal Hardikkumar Patel [DIN: 10911964] who has been appointed as an
Additional Director and designate her as an Independent Director.




SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No. 9: To consider and approve the proposal for change in Object Clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), and subject to the approval of the Registrar of Companies and such other
approvals, consents, and sanctions as may be necessary, the Object Clause of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company be and is hereby altered in the following manner:

The existing Clause III(A) of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby
substituted with the following new Clause I1I(A):

1) To carry on the business of providing, importing, exporting, selling, purchasing, trading,
production, distribution, customisation, development or otherwise deal in all types of
applications, programs, software packages, internet programs, software programs, mobile
applications, web applications, products, portals, the marketplace, services, applications, web
Pages, Website Development and Maintainance and other related Services/Products. To Provide
the offshore remote consultants on contract.

2) To carry on in India and/or elsewhere the business of, marketing, servicing, consulting, ,
purchase, sale, resale, export, import, transfer, exchange or otherwise deal in all types of Electrical
and Electronic devices, computers/parts & accessories / other related products.

3) To carry on the business of establishing and/or promoting support/consulting services
whether information technology-enabled or otherwise including but not limited to maintenance
of supporting centers/training centers, Solutions, R&D, IT Consulting, conducting training
programs, placement services, content and data services, publishing, web services, technology
outsourcing, Transcription, Back office operations, maintenance of information systems and act as
consultants for the aforementioned services and businesses.’

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
take all such steps, deeds, matters, and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient, or
incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED
MANOJ KDigitaIIy signed

by MANOJ K

RAMAVA RAMAVAT

Date: 2025.09.04
T 10:43:00 +05'30"

Manoj Ramavat
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 11039927

Place:Thane
Date: 04.09.2025




NOTES:

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May
05,2020 and Circular No.02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 and Circular
No 09/2023 dated 25.09.2023 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical
attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and
participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the
Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000
members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4, The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the
Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as
venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company on 4th September 2025 .
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility)

i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.



http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
2/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and Circular No 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 and Circular No 09/2023
dated 25t September 2023

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING

ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on, Saturday 27t September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on
Monday 29t September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e Tuesday, 2314 September 2025 may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday, 23rd September 2025

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holdin
rities in demat m

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to

update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL
holding securities in Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or
demat mode with NSDL. on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js




3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

4, Shareholders/Members can also
download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning
the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store B Google Play

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can
login through their user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
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provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting
is in progress.

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
(holding securities in account through your Depository Participant registered with
demat mode) login NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able
through their depository to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
participants redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will
be redirected to e-Voting website

of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.



mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https: //www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4, Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
demat account with CDSL. ] o )
For example if your Beneficiary ID is
]2 kiskickiackackk then your user ID is
12**************
c) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Physical Form. registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login
and cast your vote.
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.



http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

)] If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from
your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachmenti.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten
your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical r R P rd?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click
on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4, Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.
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5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

1. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer
by e-mail Avigopwani83@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power
of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority
Letter"” displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the
“Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com
or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Mr. Anubhav Saxena at

evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions
set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to csgravitvindia@gmail.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
csgravityindia@gmail.com If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you

are requested to refer to the logln method explamed at step 1 (A) ie. nginmgthgd_fguﬂ&ting_and

3. Alternatlvely shareholder/members may send a request to e votmg@nsdl co.in for procuring
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to
access e-Voting facility.
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B.THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility
for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

C. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting”
menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password
fore-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote
e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

4, Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions
in advance mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
csgravityindia@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Members who would attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and who would like to express their
views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request
from their registered email address mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number,
email id, mobile number at csgravityindia@gmail.com by 23rd September 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST). The
members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers
depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

D. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast
during the AGM, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48
hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.gravityindia.net and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING NOTICE
(Under Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 9: To consider and approve the proposal for change in Object Clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

The Company is presently engaged in the business of Fabrics and Garments as per the Object Clause
of its Memorandum of Association.

In order to align the Object Clause with the Company’s future business plans and diversification into
IT services, consulting, software development, electronic products trading, and allied activities, the
Board of Directors proposes to alter Clause III(A) of the Memorandum of Association by substituting
it with the new object clause set out in the resolution above.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 13t August, 2025 has approved the proposed alteration
of the Object Clause, subject to the approval of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 9 of the Notice for approval
of the members as a Special Resolution.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED
MANOJ K Burear.
RAMAVAT 325 225
Manoj Ramavat
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 11039927

Place:Thane
Date: 04.09.2025




This information forms a part of the Notice and Explanatory Statement for the 38" Annual General

Meeting:

Disclosure under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards - 2 issued by ICSI:

Name of the Director

Mrs. Dakshaben Rasiklal
Thakkar

Varun Rasiklal Thakkar

Date of Birth

04/03/1957

14/10/1984

Date of Appointment

13/03/1987

02/10/2016

Qualifications

S.S.C

Graduation

Directorship in other
Companies

None

Sr.
N
o

CIN/FCRN

Company Name

U67190MH199
5PTC089198

GRAVITY CAPITAL AND
FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

U24300MH199
4PTC083061

GRAVITY SYNTHETICS PRIVATE
LIMITED

U17120MH198
7PTC044882

GRAVITY TEXTILES PVT LTD

U17120MH199
2PTC065541

DAKSHALI SYNTHETICS PVT LTD

U18101MH199
9PTC121970

RAMMARUTI TEXTILE PRIVATE
LIMITED

U17120MH199
2PTC065541

DAKSHALI SYNTHETICS PVT LTD

U92419MH200
5PTC157250

ATITHI BANQUETS PRIVATE
LIMITED

8

U18101MH199
9PTC121970

RAMMARUTI TEXTILE PRIVATE
LIMITED

Committee Positions
in Gravity (India)
Limited

Audit
Member Nomination &

Committee -

Remuneration
Committee — Member
Stakeholder's
Relationship
Committee — Member
(Chairperson)

Audit Committee - Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration Committee - Chairman

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee - Member

Committee Positions
in other Public
Limited Companies

None

Relation between

Directors

Number of Shares
held in  Gravity
(India) Limited

8,71,751

9,37,125

Place:Thane
Date: 04.09.2025

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED

MANOQJ KDigitally signed
by MANOJ K
RAMAVA RAMAVAT

Date: 2025.09.04
T 10:44:03 +05'30'

Manoj Ramavat

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 11039927




DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To
The Members,
Gravity (India) Limited,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company and the accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025

1. Financial Results:
(Amount In Lacs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Turnover 122.30 225.45
Total Revenue 196.90 227.60
Less: Total Expenditure 431.34 1043.93
Profit/loss before exceptional items, Extra-ordinary (234.94) (816.33)
item and tax
Exceptional items 0 0
Profit / (loss) before tax (234.94) (816.33)
Less: Provision for tax/deferred tax (34.36) -199.99
Net Profit/Loss after tax (200.58) (616.34)

2. Share Capital:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is divided into 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each,
aggregating to Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crores only).

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital is Rs. 9,00,19,500 (Nine Crores Nineteen Thousand Five
Hundred only) divided into 9,001,950 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each as on 31st March, 2025. There are
no changes in share capital during the financial year.

3. Reserves:
During the year, the company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve.
4, Dividend:

With the view to conserve resources, the Board has not recommended any dividend for the year under
review.




5. Operations:

During the year under review, the Sales turnover of the Company decreased from Rs. 225.45 Lacs
(Rupees Two crore Twenty Five Lakhs and Forty Five Thousands Only) in the current year. The net
loss of the Company for the year is Rs. 122.30 Lacs (Rupees One crore Twenty Two Lakhs and Thirty
Thousands Only) as against a net loss of Rs. 200.58 Lacs in the previous year.

6. Material changes occurred between the end of the Financial Year to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the Report:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year 2024-25 and the date of this report.

7. Board of Directors and Composition:

The Board of Directors comprise of eminent, experienced and reputed Individuals of the Industry. During
the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with
the Company, other than the sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the
purpose of attending meetings of the Company.

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company at the end of the Financial Year are as follows:

Name of the Director DIN Designation
Mrs. Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar 00576846 Director
Mr. Varun Rasiklal Thakkar 00894145 Director
Mr. Samir Ruparelia 08551666 Independent Director
Ms. Komal Patel 10911964 Independent Director
Ms. Dipti Vasant Kadam 10218863 Independent Director

Mr. Varun Rasiklal Thakkar (DIN: 00894145) who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting

and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Details of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

Name

Designation

Mr. Jay Rasiklal Thakkar

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Varun Thakkar

Managing Director

Ms. Shreya Chawak

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer




8. Meetings of Board of Directors:

The Board has met 4 (four) times during the financial year 2024-25 on 29t May 2024, 07th August
2024, 02nd December 2024 and 20t March 2025. Details of attendance and other details of Board

Meeting are specified in Corporate Governance Report.

9, Composition of Mandatory Committees at the end of the Financial Year:

Pursuant to the provisions stipulated in 18, 19 and 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has mandatorily formed the below mentioned
Committees which shall be duly constituted. The Committee Meeting details are mentioned in Corporate

Governance Reports.

The Constitution of the Committee at the end of the Financial Year are as follows:

Name of Committee

Constitution of the Committee

Audit Committee

Mr. Samir Ruparelia Chairman of the committee

Independent Director

Ms. Komal Patel

Independent Director

Mrs. Dakshaben Thakkar, Member Non-Executive
- Non-Independent Director,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Samir Ruparelia Chairman of the committee

Independent Director

Ms.Komal Patel

Independent Director

Mrs. Dakshaben Thakkar, Member Non-Executive
- Non-Independent Director,

Stakeholders Grievances Committee

Mrs. Dakshaben Thakkar, Chairperson of the
committee

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director

Ms. Komal Patel

Independent Director

Mr. Samir Ruparelia Member

Independent Director

During the Year Ms. Dipti Kadam (DIN:10218863), Independent Director ceased to act as an
Independent Director from the Board . On account of resignation Ms. Komal Patel (DIN: 10911964) has

been appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office .

The Details of NRC Policy are included in Corporate Governance report.




10. IndependentDirectors:

During the Year Ms. Dipti Kadam (DIN:10218863), Independent Director ceased to act as an
Independent Director from the Board . On account of resignation Ms. Komal Patel (DIN: 10911964) has
been appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office .

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company under Section
149(7) the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulation. The Independent Directors meet once
a year. The details of the meeting are included in the Corporate Governance Report.

11. Public Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 & 74 and hence no
disclosure is required in this respect of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

12. Listing of Company’s Shares:

Your Company’s Equity Shares continue to be listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai in the Indo
Next(S) Group. The annual listing fee for the year 2024-25 has been paid to the Bombay Stock Exchange,
Mumbai.

13. Director’s Responsibility Statement:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby
state & confirm that:

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period;

() The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)  Thedirectors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

) The directors, have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

14. Board Evaluation:

The Board of Directors have carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees
and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance
requirements as prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015.




The performance of the Board and Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all
the Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of
Board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The Board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual
Directors. On the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to the Board and
committee meetings, preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects
of his role.

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that the Independent Directors of the Company carry their
duties with integrity and expertise and have required experience to work towards the vision of the
Company.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent Directors,
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into
account the views of executive Directors and non-executive Directors. The same was discussed in the
Board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent Directors, at which the performance of the
Board, its committees and individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of
Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being e-
valuated.

15. Auditors:

M/s. A. R. Sodha & Co, (Firm Registration No. 110324W) A Chartered Accountant Firm, were appointed
in the 35th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by the shareholders as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for a period of 3 years i.e., until the 38th AGM to be held in the year 2025 on such a remuneration as may
be fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time .The Auditor have shared their consent and eligibility
to continue as Statutory Auditor for the Financial Year 2024-25.

16. Accounting Standards and Accounting Policies:

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, which forms part of the Annual Report. Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The financial statements (Separate financial statements) have been
prepared on accrual basis in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

For all periods up to and including the Year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company has prepared its
Financial Statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read together with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments). The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”) and all amounts are
rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except as stated otherwise.

17. Auditor’s Report:

The Observation, comments & remarks referred to in the Auditors’ report are self-explanatory and do
not require any further comments.




18. Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Ainesh Jethwa & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake the Secretarial Audit for the year financial Year 2024-25 .
The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as Annexure-2 to this report.

The Secretarial Auditors have also issued the Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificate, for the financial
year ending 31st March 2025. The same is available on the Stock Exchanges and the website of the
company.

19. Reply to Comments on the Report of the Secretarial Auditors:

The Board of Director have taken note of Comments in Secretarial Audit Report and are undertaking steps
for ensuring due compliances of provisions as stated therein.

20. Corporate Governance:

A separate section on Corporate Governance pursuant to Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is included in the Annual Report as Annexure-
5 and forms a part of this report. The Company has voluntarily submitted this disclosure to the members.

21. Internal Financial Control Systems and their adequacy:

The management continuously reviews the internal control systems and procedures for the efficient
conduct of the Company’s business. The Company adheres to the prescribed guidelines with respect to
the transactions, financial reporting and ensures that all its assets are safeguarded and protected against
losses. The Internal Auditor of the Company conducts the audit on regular basis and the Audit Committee
actively reviews internal audit reports and effectiveness of internal control systems.

Internal Control Systems are implemented to safeguard the Company’s assets from loss or damage, to
keep constant check on the cost structure, to prevent revenue leakages, to provide adequate financial and
accounting controls and implement accounting standards.

22. Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached
as Annexure - 4 and forms part of this report.

23. Related Party Disclosures:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis
and were in the ordinary course of the business. The details of the transactions are elaborated in Form
AOC-2 which is an annexed to this report Annexure-3. The Company has a Related Party Transaction
Policy as per Company Act 2013 & Listing Regulations, the same has been reviewed by Board of Directors
in its meetings held

24. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings:

Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 forming part of Directors’ Report for the year ending March 31, 2025
is as follows:




(a) Conservation of energy:

Your company consumes minimum energy and strives to reduce energy consumption. Your company is
conscious about its responsibility to conserve energy, power and other energy sources wherever
possible. We emphasis towards a safe and clean environment and continue to adhere to all regulatory
requirements and guidelines. The manufacturing team works under the guidance of expert engineers of
the Company continuously strives and devises various means to conserve energy and identify methods
for the optimum use of energy.

(b) Technological absorption:

The Company has adopted modern IT tools, digital processes, and training initiatives to improve efficiency
and service quality, resulting in better operational performance and cost savings.

(c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo
during the year in terms of actual outflows.

Foreign Exchange Earning: Rs. NIL
Foreign Exchange Outflow: Rs. NIL

25. Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors had approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board
and all employees in the course of day-to-day business operations of the Company.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the
Members of the Board and the Senior Managerial Personnel in their business dealings, at workplace, in
dealing with various stakeholders etc.

All the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel periodically affirm and confirm compliance to
the Code of Conduct. Further the Certificate of Compliance with the Code of Conduct is appended to the
Corporate Governance Report.

26. Risk Management Policy:

During the year, the Management of the Company had evaluated the existing Risk Management Policy of
the Company. The Risk Management policy has been reviewed and found adequate and sufficient to the
requirement of the Company. The Management has evaluated various risks and that there is no element
of risk identified that may threaten the existence of the Company.

27. Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees:

Vigil mechanism is established for Directors and Employees to report their grievance and concerns. The
details of the same are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

28. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments u/s 186:

The Company has made no loans, advances or guarantee during the year 2024-25.




29. Prevention of Insider Trading:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s shares by
the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading window is closed. The
Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. All the Directors and Designated employees have
confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct.

30. Disclosure under the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal), Act 2013:

The Company has believed in providing a safe and harassment free environment at work place for each
and every employee of the Company. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. Proper care
is being taken by the Company in order to provide a safe and harassment free work place. No Complaints
have been received during the financial year under review.

31. Corporate Governance Report from Statutory Auditors:

Certificate from the Statutory Auditor, M/s. A. R. Sodha & Co, (Firm Registration No 110324W), A
Chartered Accountant Firm confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is
annexed to the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.

32. Particulars of Employees:

No Employee of the Company draws a salary exceeding Rupees One Crore and Two Lakh per annum or
Rs. 8,50,000 (Rupees Eight Lakhs and Fifty thousand) per month during the financial year. The details of
employees’ remuneration required under Rule 12 is attached to this Report as Annexure - 1.

33. Employee Relations:

Relations with the employees remained cordial. The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation
for their cooperation received from the employees at all levels.

34. Extract of Annual Return:

The Annual Return of the Company can be accessed from the website of the Company at
www.gravityindialtd.com

35. Other Disclosures:

(@) The Company is not required to maintain any cost records for any products U/s 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(b) TheBoardu/s 118 (10) of Companies Act, 2013 has ensured due compliance of provision of
Secretarial Standards [ and Il issued by Institute of Company Secretaries, India (ICSI).

(c)  Asthe Company does not meet criteria specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable and hence no separate annexures or
details are given for the same in this Report.

(d)  There are no frauds reported U/s 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, by the Statutory Auditors
or Secretarial Auditors of the Company.




(e)  There are no holding, subsidiaries or associate companies of Gravity (India) Ltd. Hence, no

separate disclosure is provided in this regard.

(H There are no disclosures required to be given under equity shares with different right, ESOP or
Sweat equity as company has not used any such securities.

(g) The Nomination & Remuneration policy of the company is available on the website of the
company www.gravityindialtd.com and brief details of the same are included in Corporate
Governance Report

36. Acknowledgements:

The Board expresses its gratitude and appreciates the assistance and co-operation received from the
Creditors, Banks, Government Authorities, Customers and Shareholders during the year under review.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED

Digitally signed by

MANOJ K manosk

RAMAVAT

RAMAVAT pate: 2025.09.04

10:44:33 +05'30'

Manoj Ramavat
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 11039927

Place: Thane
Date: 04.09.2025
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Annexure-1

DETAILS PERTAINING TO THE REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

1) Ratio of the Remuneration of each Executive Director to the Median Remuneration of the
Employees of the Company and Percentage increase in Remuneration of each Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Director and Company Secretary for the Financial Year 2024-25 as
under:

Sr.| Name ofDirector/ Designation Ratio of Remuneration to each | % increase in
No. KMP Director and KMP to median | Remuneration
remuneration of Employees (on| inFY 2024-25

31st March, 2025)

1. i :
Mr. Varun Chairman and MD 0.1:1 NA
Thakkar
2. | Mr.]Jay Thakkar Chief Financial Officer 0.05:1 NA
3. | Ms.Shreya Chawak Company Secretary NA NA

2) The Percentage increase in the Median Remuneration of Employees in the Financial Year:

NIL
3) The number of Permanent Employees on the rolls of Company: 30 (Excluding Secretary and

CFO)

4) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of Employees other than the
Managerial Personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the Managerial Remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the Managerial Remuneration: NIL

5) Affirmation that the Remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:
The Company affirms Remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions.

No amount was paid as advance.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MANOJ K Digitally signed
by MANOJ K

RAMAVA RXMAVAT
T Date: 2025.09.04 Manoi Ramawat

10:44:58 +05'30'
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 11039927

Place: Thane

Date: 04.09.2025
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Form MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s. Gravity (India) Limited

(CIN: L17110MH1987PLC042899)

Shree Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex,

M Building, Gala No. 104, Thane Bhiwandi Road,
Shastrinagar (Thane), Thane 421302, Maharashtra

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Gravity (India) Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and provided as scanned copies in
electronic mode and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarifications given to us and representations made by the Management, | hereby report that
in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31%t March, 2025 (“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
made available to me and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31, 2025 according to the applicable provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder and

amendments from time to time;
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and amendments from time to time;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 and amendments from time to time;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; and amendments from
time to time. (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations (As amended), 2015; and

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
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Regulations, 2018;

(vi) As informed by the Company, no other Industrial specific law is applicable specifically
to the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following as amended
from time to time:

(1) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India; and;

(1)) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited,
Mumbai.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following
observations:

1. The Company is required to maintain updated website in compliance with Regulation
46 (1) (2) & (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2011.

2. Regulation 30 read with 7B i & ii of PART A: Disclosures of Events or Information:
Specified Securities of Schedule Il - Detailed reason for resignation has to be given in
resignation letter by the resigning independent Director and also have confirmation
that there are no other material reason for her/his resignation other than those
provided. However, it was observed that in the resignation letter of Ms. Dipti Vasant
Kadam dated February 2, 2025, the reason for resignation was not stated, which is non-
compliant with the requirements prescribed under the said provisions.

3. As required under the Companies Act, 2013, companies are mandated to maintain
various statutory registers for compliance and record-keeping purposes. However,
during the course of the audit, it was observed that the Company has not updated the
statutory registers accurately.

4. Pursuant to Regulation 10(1A) of SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024: The listed entity
is required to submit Integrated Filing (Financials) with effect from quarter ended
December 31, 2024, within 45 days from the end of the quarter, other than the last
guarter, and 60 days from the end of the last quarter and the financial year. During the
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Review Period, the Company has delayed by 3 days in filing Integrated Filing (Financials)
with the Stock Exchange for the quarter ended December 31, 2024.

5. Pursuant to BSE Guidance Note issued under Notice No. 20220907-17 dated September
7, 2022 mandate listed entities for authentication of documents, corporate
announcements and filings to BSE using Digital Signature Certificate (DSC). During the
Review Period, the Company has filled all the announcement, disclosures in wet
signatures of Director/ Company Secretary.

6. During the course of our audit, it was observed that the Company had appointed Mr.
Samir Bipinkumar Ruparelia as an Additional Independent Director. As per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the particulars
of the Director are required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies in Form DIR-12
within a period of 30 days from the date of appointment. However, there was a delay
in filing Form DIR-12 for the said appointment. The form was filed beyond the prescribed
period of 30 days but within 60 days from the date of appointment. Consequently, the
Company was required to pay additional fees for the delayed filing in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

| further report that:

(1) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
made in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(i) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

(iii) As per the Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairperson, the
decisions of the Board were approved by either by unanimous way or by majority and
no dissenting views have been recorded.

(iv) There are adequate systems and processes in the Company, commensurate with the

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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(v) AllIndependent Directors of the Company were registered as an independent director
in the independent Directors databank maintained by the IICA.

| further Report that, during the audit period of the Company: There was no instance of:
Demerger/ Restructuring/ Scheme of Arrangement.

| further Inform/report that during the year under review, the following events or actions
had a major bearing on its affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc., that

1. Mr. Samir Bipinkumar Ruparelia (DIN: 08551666) was re-appointed as an Additional
Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from
August 14, 2024, and was regularized as a Non-Executive Independent Director at the
37th Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024.

2. The Company shifted its registered office from Building No. Q-17/A, Shree Rajlaxmi
Commercial Complex, Thane Bhiwandi Road, Bhiwandi, Thane 421302, Maharashtra
to Shree Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex, M Building, Gala No. 104, Thane Bhiwandi
Road, Shastrinagar (Thane), Bhiwandi, Thane 421302, Maharashtra with effect from
November 10, 2024.

3. Ms. Dipti Vasant Kadam (DIN: 10218863) resigned from the Board as a Non-Executive
Independent Director and from the Committees of the Company with effect from
February 1, 2025. The reason for her resignation was not provided.

4. Ms. Shreya C. Chawak (Membership No.: A63071) resigned as Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from November 1, 2024.

5. The Company appointed Ms. Geetanjali Malik (Membership No.: 30962) as Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from February 1, 2025.

6. The Company appointed Ms. Komal Hardikkumar Patel (DIN: 10911964) as an
Additional Independent Director in the category of Non-Executive Independent
Director with effect from February 1, 2025.

7. Ms. Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar (DIN: 00576846) was re-appointed as a Non-Executive
Director, retiring by rotation, at the Annual General Meeting.

8. As per the paid up capital structure and net worth of the Company, the company was
eligible to claim exemption given under regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 for compliance of regulations 17 to 27 of the SEBI (LODR)
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Regulations, 2015. However the Company voluntarily opts to comply with such
regulations.

| further report that, my audit was subjected only to verifying adequacy of systems and
procedures that are in place for ensuring proper compliances on the part of the Company and
we are not responsible for any lapses in those compliances on the part of the Company.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE
A” and forms an integral part if this report.

For Ainesh Jethwa & Associates

(Company Secretary in Practice)

Peer Review Certificate No. 1727/2022
AINESH Digitally signed by

AINESH BHUPENDRA

BHUPENDRA  JetHwa
Date: 2025.09.03 13:12:47

JETHWA +05'30
Ainesh Jethwa
(Proprietor)
Mem No.: 27990 | COP No.: 19650
UDIN: A027990G001152894

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 03-09-2025
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Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members,

M/s. Gravity (India) Limited

Shree Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex,

M Building, Gala No. 104,

Thane Bhiwandi Road, Shastrinagar (Thane),
Thane - 421302, Maharashtra

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1) It is the Responsibility of Management of the Company to maintain Secretarial records,
device proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2) | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3) | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4) Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

5) The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

Disclaimer
6) The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.
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For Ainesh Jethwa & Associates
(Company Secretary in Practice)
Peer Review Certificate No. 1727/2022

AINESH Digitally signed by AINESH
BHUPENDRA 5 o0s 151504
JETHWA +0530°

Ainesh Jethwa

(Proprietor)

Mem No.: 27990 | COP No.: 19650
UDIN: A027990G001152894

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 03-09-2025
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Annexure-3

FORM No. AOC -2

As on the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
Parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length Transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of Contracts or arrangements or Transactions notatarm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the Related Party and nature of relationship: NIL

(b) Nature of Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions: NIL

(c) Duration of the Contracts / Arrangements/Transactions: NIL
(d) Salientterms of the Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions including the value, if any: NIL
(e) Justification for entering into such Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions: NIL
(f) Date(s) ofapproval by the Board: NIL
(g) Amountpaidasadvances,ifany: NIL

(h) Date onwhich the Special Resolution was passed in General Meeting as required under first provision
to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013: NIL

2. Details of material Contracts orarrangement or Transactions atarm’s length basis:

Amountin Lacs

Name of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms Date(s) An_lount
related Contracts/ Contracts / of the of paid as
Party and arrangements,/ arrangements/ | Contracts or approval advances,
Nature of Transaction Transactions arrangements by the ] if any
relationship or board, if
Transactions any
including the
value, if any (in
Rs.)
Mr. Varun Remuneration On-Going Noted & -
Thakkar (KMP) reviewed
8.40 on
quarterly
basis.
Mr. Jay Thakkar Remuneration On-Going 3.00 Noted &
reviewed
on
quarterly

basis




Rammaruti Rent Received On-Going 1.92 Noted &
Textiles Pvt Ltd. revger\lNed
quarterly
basis
Enterprises
where KMP has
significant
influence)
Rammaruti Reimbursement On-Going 30.67 Noted & -
Textiles Private Received for reviewed
Limited Electricity qua(l)‘?erly
(Enterprise in Expenses basis.
whichrelative of
KMP and KMP
has control/
significant
influence)
Shivani Textiles Reimbursement On-Going 9.98 Noted & -
Received for reviewed
Electricity qua(;fclerly
(Enterprise in Expenses basis.
whichrelative of
KMP and KMP
has control/
significant
influence)

Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions. No amount was paid as advance.

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

Digitally signed

MANOJ K byMANOIK
RA

MAVAT
RAMAVAT bpate: 2025.09.04

10:45:30 +05'30"

Place: Thane Manoj Ramawat Chairman & Managing Director

Date: 04.09.2025 DIN: 11039927




Annexure-4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management of Gravity (India) Limited, is pleased to present its report analyzing the
Company's operations in the textile industry segment. The report contains expectations of the
Company's business based on the current market environment.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The global textile industry has shown significant growth, driven by increasing consumer demand,
advancements in technology, and the expansion of e-commerce. In 2023, the industry was valued
at approximately USD 1.2 trillion, with expectations to reach USD 1.5 trillion by 2026, growing at
a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5%. Key segments include apparel, home textiles, and
industrial textiles, with apparel being the largest segment.

INDIAN TEXTILE

The home textile export from India faced a sharp decline. Cotton - made bed sheets had to
compete with products made from manmade fibres which were substantially cheaper. Demand
came only for lower - count products, but at very low price.

KEY MARKET TRENDS

1. Sustainability and Eco-friendly Products: There is a growing consumer preference for
sustainable and eco-friendly textiles. Companies are increasingly adopting sustainable practices,
such as using organic materials, reducing water consumption, and implementing recycling
programs.

2. Technological Advancements: Innovations such as smart textiles, which incorporate technology
for various functionalities, are gaining traction. Automation and digitalization in manufacturing
processes are improving efficiency and reducing costs.

3. E-commerce Expansion: The rise of e-commerce platforms has significantly impacted the textile
industry. Online sales are growing, providing opportunities for companies to reach a broader
audience.

4. Changing Consumer Preferences: There is a shift towards comfortable and casual wear,
especially influenced by the work-from-home culture. Additionally, customization and
personalization of products are becoming more popular.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE




For the fiscal year 2024-25, the textile industry exhibited mixed performance across different
regions and segments. Companies with a strong online presence and those that adopted
sustainable practices performed better than those relying solely on traditional brick-and-mortar
retail.

During the year under review, the Sales turnover of the Company decreased from Rs. 225.45 Lacs
(Rupees Two crore Twenty Five Lakhs and Forty Five Thousands Only) in the current year. The net
loss of the Company for the year is Rs. 122.30 Lacs (Rupees One crore Twenty Two Lakhs and Thirty
Thousands Only) as against a net loss of Rs. 200.58 Lacs in the previous year.

STRATEGICINITIATIVES

1. Expansion into New Markets : Companies are exploring opportunities in emerging markets,
particularly in Asia and Africa, where there is growing demand for textile products.

2. Sustainability Efforts: Many companies have set ambitious sustainability goals, including
reducing carbon footprints, water usage, and waste. Partnerships with eco-friendly suppliers and
adoption of green technologies are critical components of these efforts.

3. Digital Transformation : Investment in e-commerce platforms, digital marketing, and data
analytics is a priority to enhance customer engagement and streamline operations.

4. Product Innovation : Developing new product lines, such as smart textiles and high-
performance fabrics, is a key strategy to meet changing consumer demands and differentiate from
competitors.

RISKS AND CHALLENGES

1. Raw Material Price Volatility: Fluctuating prices of raw materials, such as cotton and synthetic
fibers, pose a significant risk to profitability.

2. Supply Chain Disruptions: The global supply chain remains vulnerable to disruptions caused
by geopolitical tensions, natural disasters, and pandemics.

3. Regulatory Compliance: Adherence to stringent environmental and labor regulations can
increase operational costs and affect competitiveness.

4. Market Competition: The industry is highly competitive, with numerous players vying for
market share. Maintaining differentiation and innovation is crucial to stay ahead.

OUTLOOK

The coming year will be challenging with respect to pricing. We have to focus more on offering
new products and meeting customer retail price points. Also focus will be on blending with
manmade fibres that can fit into the price bracket acceptable to buyers. Overall, the textile market
is sombre and expected to take around one quarter to stabilize. Further, we must navigate the
challenging period by differentiating ourselves through innovation and quality. The
manufacturers who will be able to address these challenges, while also differentiating themselves
through innovation and quality, are likely to be successful in times to come.




The textile industry is poised for moderate growth in the coming years, supported by
technological advancements, increasing consumer demand for sustainable products, and the
expansion of e-commerce. Companies that prioritize sustainability, digital transformation, and
innovation are likely to perform better. However, managing supply chain risks and raw material
price volatility will be essential for maintaining profitability

In conclusion, the textile industry is navigating through a transformative phase, with significant
opportunities and challenges. Strategic initiatives focused on sustainability, technology, and
market expansion will be key drivers of success in the evolving landscape.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Digitally signed by

MANOJ K manosk

RAMAVAT
RAMAVAT pate: 2025.09.04

10:46:06 +05'30'

Manoj Ramavat

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 11039927
Place: Thane

Date: 04.09.2025




Annexure-5
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance provides a principle process and structure through which the objectives, the
means of attaining the objectives and systems of monitoring performance are also set. Corporate
Governance is a set of accepted principles by management of the alienable rights of the Shareholders as
a true owner of the corporation and of their own role as trustees on behalf of the shareholders. Itis about:

a) Commitmentto the values;

b) Ethical BusinessConduct;

¢) Transparency;

d) Clear distinction between personal and corporate funds in the Management of the Company;
e) Compliance with all the regulators;

f) Sustainable value creation for all shareholders.

Corporate Governance involves a set of relationships between a company's management, its board, its
shareholders and other stakeholders. In this background the Board of Directors and the senior
management have a special responsibility to ensure that the principles of Corporate Governance such as
transparency, accountability, discharge of fiduciary duties, Compliance requirements and above all,
shareholder interest are always at the center of the Company's activities. Company's Governance
framework is based on the following main principles:

a) Constitution of a Board of Directors of appropriate composition, size and commitment to discharge
their responsibilities and duties;

b) Ensuring timely flow of information to the Board and its Committees to enable them discharge their
functions effectively;

¢) Independentverification and safeguarding integrity of the Company's financial reporting;

d) Asoundsystem of risk managementand internal control;

e) Timely and balanced disclosure of all material information concerning the Company to all
stakeholders;

f) Transparency andaccountability;

g) Compliance with all therules and regulations;

h) Fairand equitable treatmentofallits stakeholdersincluding employees, customers, shareholdersand
investors.

In accordance with Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (LODR) and the best practices followed internationally on corporate governance, the
details of governance systems and processes are as under:

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Your Company has complied with the requirement stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 (”"SEBI Listing Regulation”)
as applicable with regard to corporate governance. The Company is committed to the consistent
adherence to the said corporate governance code to maintain a greater degree of responsibility &
accountability.

Your Company's philosophy on corporate governance envisages the attainment of highest level of
transparency in accountability and equity in all facets of its operation and in all its interactions with its
shareholders / employees, government and lenders.




The Company believes that all its operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing
over all shareholders' value over a sustained period of time.

2.BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a) The Board of Directors consists of following four Directors as on 31st March, 2025
Name of the Director DIN Designation
Mrs. Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar 00576846 Director
Mr. Varun Rasiklal Thakkar 00894145 Director
Mr. Samir Ruparelia 08551666 Independent Director
Ms. Komal Patel 10911964 Independent Director
Ms. Dipti Vasant Kadam 10218863 Independent Director

b) The Meeting of Board of Directors during the financial year 2024-25 were held on:

1. 29th May 2024

2.| 7% August 2024

3. 02nd Dececember 2024

4. | 20t March 2025

) The Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 was held on
30th September 2024

d) The attendance of the Directors to the Meetings of the Board of Directors and to the Annual
General Meeting of the Company is elaborated in the below mentioned table:

Meeting ofthe Board of Number of Meetings in the Financial Year 2024-25

Directors

Name of Directors Category Held Attended
Varun Rasiklal Thakkar Director 4 4
Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar Director 4 4
Komal Patel Independent Director 4 1
Samir Bipin Kumar Ruparelia Independent Director 4 4

Ms. Dipti Vasant Kadam Independent Director 4 3

During the Financial Year, all the Directors of the Company had attended the Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 30t September 2024.




e) The Number of Companies and Committees in which the Board Members are a member or
chairperson are as follows:

Name of Director Chairmanship/| Mr.Varun Mrs. Mr. Samir Ms.

Membership Thakkar Dakshaben | Ruparelia Komal
Thakkar Patel

Number of Chairperson/ 0 0 0 0

Directorshipsin Chairman

Other Public

Companies Member 0 0 0 0

Number of Chairperson/ 0 0 0 0

Committees Chairman

positions held in

Other Public Member 0 0 0 0

Companies

In accordance to regulation 18 and 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Chairmanship/Membership
of only Audit Committee and Stakeholder's Relationship Committee in all Public Companies excluding
Gravity (India) Limited have been considered.

Disclosure of relationship between the directors inter-se: Mr. Varun Thakkar & Mrs. Dakshaben Thakkar
are relatives.

f) Stake held by Non-executive Directors in the Company are as follows:

Name of Non-Executive Mrs. Dakshaben Mr. Samir Komal Thakkar
Directors Thakkar Ruparelia

Number of Shares 8,71,751 1,88,368 0

Number of Convertible

Instruments Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

9) The familiarization programsimparted to Independent Directoris displayed on the website of the

Company www.gravityindialtd.com

3. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 27t March 2025 inter alia, to:



http://www.gravityindialtd.com/

A) REVIEWED THE PERFORMANCE OF NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND OVERALL PERFORMANCE
OF THE BOARD AS A WHOLE.

B) REVIEWED THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE COMPANY TAKING INTO ACCOUNT
THE VIEWS OF EXECUTIVE AND NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY.

C) ASSESSED THE QUALITY, QUANTITY AND TIMELINESS OF FLOW OF INFORMATION BETWEEN THE
COMPANY MANAGEMENT AND THE BOARD THAT IT IS NECESSARY FOR THE BOARD TO EFFECTIVELY
AND REASONABLY PERFORM THEIR DUTIES.

D) CONSIDERED AND TOOK NOTE OF SEBI (LISTING AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015. ALL THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS WERE PRESENT AT THE MEETING.

All the independent Directors were present at the meeting.

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors has constituted an Audit Committee of Directors constituted in line with the
provisions of regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015
read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and empowered the Committee to deal with all such
matters which it may consider appropriate to perform as Audit Committee Including items specified in
the Section 177 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be modified /amended from time to time), along
with items specified in Part C of Schedule II in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015 under the head role of Audit Committee(as may be modified / amended from time to
time) and such matters as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director of the Company.
Terms of reference

Overseeing Financial Reporting process and disclosure of financial information, to ensure that the
Financial Statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommending appointment and removal of the Statutory Auditors, fixation of Audit fee and approval
for payment of any other services;

Reviewing with the Management, the periodical Financial Statements including of Subsidiaries/
Associates if any in particular the investments made by the unlisted Subsidiaries of the Company, before
submission to the Board for approval;

Reviewing with the Management and the Statutory and Internal Auditors, the adequacy of Internal
Control Systems and recommending improvements to the Management;

Reviewing the adequacy of Internal Audit function, approving Internal Audit plans and efficacy of the
functions including the structure of the Internal Audit department, staffing, reporting structure, coverage
and frequency of Internal Audit;

Discussion with Internal Auditor on any significant findings and follow-up thereon;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by Internal Auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or failure of Internal Control Systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;




Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the Audit commences, about the nature and scope of Audit, as
well as post-audit discussions to ascertain any area of concern;

Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations,
statement of significant Related Party Transactions, Management letters/letter of Internal Control
Weakness issued by Statutory Auditors, Internal Audit Reports etc;

Reviewing the Company's Financial and Risk Management System. Scrutiny of Inter-corporate Loans and
Investments;

Reviewing any subsequent modification of transactions with the Related Parties.

Reviewing the reasons for substantial defaults in the payments to the Depositors, Debentures holders,
Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared Dividends) and Creditors if any.

Besides the Committee Members, Chief Financial Officer and partners/other representatives of the firms
of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors were also present at the Meetings to answer the queries
raised by the Committee Members;

Establish a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as
may be prescribed;

The Chairman of Audit Committee was present at 36t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
27t September 2023;

To perform such other function(s) as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Pursuant to Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing and Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

Audit Committee Meetings held during the year were as follows:

1. | 29t%hMay 2024

2. | 7thAugust 2024

3. 02nrd December 2024

4, 20t March 2025

The Composition of the Audit Committee and the details of Meetings attended by its members are given
below:




Audit Committee Number of Meetings in the
Financial Year 2024-25

Name of Committee members Category Held Attended
Mrs. Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar Director, Member 4 4
Ms. Komal Patel Independent Director, Member 4 1
Mr. Samir Bipin Kumar Ruparelia | Independent Director, Chairman 4 4

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors in line
with the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013. The role of the Committee is to
perform all such matters as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule II - Part D about
Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors under SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which inter-alia includes recommendation to Board of
Directors, the Remuneration Policy for the Company, formulation of criteria for performance evaluation
of Directors, Board and Committee, appointment of Director, appointment and remuneration of Key
Managerial Personnel's and Senior Management of the Company. The Committee will also deal with
matters as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee is an Independent Director. Pursuant to Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the details of Meetings attended by its members are given below:

Four Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting were held during the year.

1. | 29t%hMay 2024

2. | 7thAugust 2024

3. 02nrd December 2024

4, 20t March 2025




The Composition of the Committee and the details of Meetings attended by its members are given below:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings in the
Financial Year 2024-25

Name of Committee members Category Held Attended
Mrs. Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar Director, Member 4 4
Ms. Komal Patel Independent Director, Member 4 1
Mr. Samir Bipin Kumar Ruparelia | Independent Director, Chairman 4 4

The performance evaluation criteria of the Independent Directors involve the preparation, involvement
in the relevant agenda items of the meetings, contribution to the betterment of the Business of the
Company, maintenance of high standards of ethics and integrity, etc.

6. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors has constituted a Stakeholders' Relationship / Grievance Committee of Directors in
line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of the Committee is to
consider and resolve the Grievances of Security holders and perform such roles as may require under the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Continuous efforts are made to ensure that Grievances are expeditiously redressed to the satisfaction of
Investors. A status report of Shareholders complaints and redressal thereof is prepared and placed before
Stakeholders' Relationship/Grievance Committee of Directors.

Terms of reference:

a) The Committee looks into the Redressal of Shareholders'/Investors' Complaints / Grievances
pertaining to transfer or credit of Shares, non-receipt of Annual Reports, Dividend payments (ifany) and
other miscellaneous Complaints/ Grievances.

b) The Committee reviews performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent and recommends measures
for overall improvement in the quality of Investor services.

¢) The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

d) Details of Investor Complaints received and redressed during the Financial 2024-25 are as follows:

Complaint at the Received during the | Disposed of during Unresolved as

beginning of the Year Year the Year
on 31st March, 2025

Nil Nil Nil Nil




Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer:

Ms. Shreya Chawak was appointed as the Compliance officer/Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f.
26t August, 2021.

The Composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and the details of Meetings attended by its
members are given below:

Four Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting were held during the year, the same is as follows:

1. 29th May 2024

2. 7th August 2024

3. 02nd December 2024

4, 20th March 2025

The Composition of the Committee and the details of Meetings attended by its members are given below:

Stake holder’s relationship Committee Number of Meetings in the
Financial Year 2024-25

Name of Committee members Category Held Attended
Mrs. Dakshaben Rasiklal Thakkar Director, Member 4 4
Ms. Komal Patel Independent Director, Member 4 1
Mr. Samir Bipin Kumar Ruparelia | Independent Director, Chairman 4 4

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
Date and time for last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) were as follows:




Year Time Date Special Resolution passed

2021-22 1.00 P.M 26.08.2022 Yes
2022-23 1.00 P.M 27.09.2023 No
2023-24 1.00 P.M. 30.09.2024 Yes

For the Annual General Meeting for the year 2021-22 the location was: Unit no: 131, 1st Floor, Sanjay
Building No.5-B, Mittal Industrial Estate, Sir Mathuradas Vasanji Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 059
MH IN held via Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

For the Annual General Meeting for the year 2022-23 the location was: _Bldg No.Q-17/A, Shree
Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex Thane Bhiwandi Road Bhiwandi Thane MH 421302 IN_ held via Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

For the Annual General Meeting for the year 2023-24 the location was: _Bldg No.Q-17/A, Shree
Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex Thane Bhiwandi Road Bhiwandi Thane MH 421302 IN_ held via Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

Details of Special Resolution Passed in previous three Annual General Meeting.

AGM Date | Particulars

30.09.2024 | Re - Appointment of Samir Bipinkumar Ruparelia (DIN_- 08551666) as an Independent
Director of the Company.

27.09.2023
NIL

26.08.2022
1. Reappointment of Mr. Varun Thakkar as the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company.

Change in the Registered Office of the Company.

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting:

No Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members was held during the year 2024-25
Postal Ballot:

No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year 2024-25

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The Company has regularly published its quarterly, half yearly and annual results in one English
Newspaper and one Marathi Newspaper and submitted to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the
requirements stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and also in accordance to the erstwhile Listing Agreement.




The financial results are normally published in The Free Press Journal (English) and Navshakti (Marathi)
Newspaper.

Also they are uploaded on the Company's website: www.gravityindialtd.com

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a) Annual General Meeting:

Date: 30t - September 2025

Day: Tuesday

Time: 1.00 P.M

Place: Meeting shall be convened through VC/OAVM as per MCA circulars
Common venue: Regd office of the Company situated at Bldg No.Q-17/A, Shree Rajlaxmi Commercial
Complex Thane Bhiwandi Road Bhiwandi Thane MH 421302 IN

b) Financial Calendar:

Accounting Year - 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025

First quarter results - First week of August, 2024

Second quarter results - Lastt week of October, 2024

Third quarter results - 1st week of February, 2025

Fourth quarter results - Last week of May, 2025

) Book Closure Date: - 24th September 2025 to 30t September 2025(Both Days inclusive )
d) Listing on Stock Exchange: The Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE)

e) The Company has paid the listing fees to the Stock Exchange for the Financial Year 2023-24
f) Stock Code: 532015

g) Demat ISIN No.: INE995A01013

h) CIN: L17110MH1987PLC042899

i) STOCK EXCHANGE PRICE DATA: HIGH / LOW DURING EACH MONTH IN LAST FINANCIAL
YEAR:

Period High Low Period High Low Period High Low
Apr-24 5.16 3.85 Aug-24 490 4.04 Dec-24 6.90 6.22
May-24 4.89 4.00 Sept-24 5.34 4.07 Jan-25 6.58 4.03

Jun-24 5.20 3.92 Oct-24 6.07 3.73 Feb-25 5.79 3.72
Jul-24 5.18 431 Nov-24 8.40 7.22 Mar-25 4.94 4.51




i) PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISION TO BSE INDEX:

Monthly High-Low Stock Prices (Apr-24 To Mar-25)

7 Monthly High-Low Stock Prices (Apr-24 to Mar-25)
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k) REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFERAGENTS:

For both physical and De-mat (Common Registry):
Link Intime India Private Limited C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai - 400083.

During the Year, pursuant to the order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench, Universal Capital Securities Private Limited has amalgamated with Link Intime India Private
Limited effective from 22nd December 2023, Consequently, the name of the RTA is ‘Link Intime India
Private Limited.

1) SHARE TRANSER SYSTEM:

Presently the shares, which are received in physical form, are processed and the share certificates duly
endorsed are returned within the period of one month of the date of receipt subject to documents being
valid and complete in all respects. The securities of the Company are dematerialized to enable the
shareholders to have easy and safe transfer of shares.

m) DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31st MARCH, 2025 IS AS UNDER:

No. of shares No. of % To total Total Shares % Of
. Shareholders Shareholders For The .
Holdings Issued Capital
Range
Up to 500 4087 73.5072 602850 6.70

501 -1000 701 12.6079 621637 6.91




1001 - 2000 364 6.5468 588466 6.54
2001-3000 126 2.2662 335297 3.72
3001 - 4000 51 0.9173 181571 2.02
4001 - 5000 61 1.0971 293420 3.26
5001 - 10000 81 1.4568 605324 6.72
10001 and above 89 1.6007 5773385 64.13
Total 5560 100 9001950 100

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025:

Category No. of Shares of (%) Percentage
Rs. 10/- each
Indian Promoters 2104048 23.37

Foreign Promoters - -

Persons Acting in Concert - -

Mutual Funds and UTI - -

Banks / Financial Institutions / Insurance - -

Companies
Private Corporate Bodies 1004324 0
Indian Public 5319174 59.09
NRIs / OCBs 403955 449
NBFC/LLP 0 0
HUF 0 0
Others 170449 1.89
Total 9001950 100

n) DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:

As on 31.03.2025 of the total equity shares issued, 97.90% were held in dematerialized form and the
balance 2.10% of shares in physical form.




0) COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES:

During the year under review there were no Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging
activities

p) PLANTLOCATIONS:
The Company's Plants are located at Silvassa, Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

q) ADDRESS FORCORRESPONDENCE:
i) Investor Correspondence:

For any query relating to the Shares of the Company, held in Physical form or in Demat form.

OR

ii) Forgrievanceredressal & any query on Annual Report:

Correspondence by the shareholders/Investors should be addressed to the Registered Office of the
Company.

Details of Company Secretary: Ms. Geetanjali kumari

Office address: Shree Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex,

Bldg no."Q", Gala No 17, Thane-Bhiwandi Road, Village Kalher, Bhiwandi- 421302
Email ID: csgravityindia@gmail.com

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company.
Details of transactions with related parties are disclosed in notes to the Accounts in the Annual Report.
All related party transactions are negotiated at arms' length basis and are only intended to further the
interest of the Company.

Confirmation that None of the Directors are disqualified:

The Company has obtained a certificate from Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors
on the Board have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors in the
Company.

Penalties:
During the Financial year 2024-25, No penalty was levied by the exchange.

Compliances:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has also complied with mandatory and
non-mandatory applicable rules and regulations prescribed by Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other
statutory authority relating to the capital markets. All returns/Reports were filed within stipulated time
with Stock Exchanges/ other authorities.

Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism:



mailto:csgravityindia@gmail.com

i) topromote ethical behaviorinallits business activities

i) to establish mechanism for employees to reportany genuine grievances, illegal, unethical behavior,
suspected fraud or violation of laws, rules and regulation or conduct

There reportable matters may be disclosed to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The Policy
also provides for adequate protection to the whistle blower against victimization or discriminatory
practices. No Personnel is denied access to the Audit Committee. No Personnel is denied access to the
Audit Committee in case they detect any suspected fraud or irregularity in the Company

The Directors and senior management are obligated to maintain confidentiality of such reporting
violation and ensure that the whistle blowers are not subject to any discriminatory practices.

The total fees paid to Statutory Auditors by the Company in F.Y. 2024-25 is Rs. 2,65,000.

11. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DISCRETIONARY
REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE I1 HAVE BEEN ADOPTED:

The Chairman of the Company is an Executive Director of the Company and operates from the Registered
Office of the premises of Company. No such half-yearly declaration of financial performance including
summary of the significant events in last six months was sent to each household of shareholders, however
the mandatory Annual Report is sent to all the Shareholders. The Audit Opinion with respect to the
financial Statements of the Company for the year under review is an unmodified one. Our Company has
appointed the Managing Director as the Chairperson of the Company. The Internal Auditor reports to the
Audit Committee of the Company.

12. THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS
SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF
REGULATION 46 SHALL BE MADE IN THE SECTION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE ANNUAL
REPORT:

The Compliances with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) of regulation 46 are complied with to the extent applicable to our
Company during the year under review. Certificate from the Statutory Auditor, M/s A R Sodha and Co
(FRN: 110324 W) confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to this
Report forming part of the Annual Report.

Declaration signed by the Managing Director of the Company stating that the members of Board
of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of
Board of Directors and Senior Management is annexed to this Report forming part of the Annual Report.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Digitally signed

MANQOJ K byMANOJK

RAMAVAT
RAMAVAT pate: 2025.09.04

10:46:56 +05'30"

MANOJ RAMAVAT
Place: Thane

Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 04.09.2025 DIN: 11039927




CERTIFICATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) AND THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
(CFO)

To
The Board of Directors

Gravity (India) Limited

We, Manoj Ramavat, Managing Director and Jay Thakkar, Chief Financial Officer of Gravity (India)
Limited (“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge & belief certify that:

A) Wehave reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March,
2025 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material factor
contain statements that might be misleading;

i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are
incompliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations

B) Thereare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered in to by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

C) Weacceptresponsibility for establishing and maintaining Internal Controls for Financial Reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal Control Systems of the Company pertaining to
Financial Reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such Internal Controls, if any, of which weare aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D) Wehaveindicated tothe Auditorsand the Audit committee that:
i) There were no significant changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting during the year;
i)  Therewere no changes inaccounting policies; and

iii)  There were no instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement there in
of the Management or an Employee having a significant role in the Company's Internal Control System
over Financial Reporting.




DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

All the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed due
observance of the Code of Conduct, framed pursuant to Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in so far as it is applicable to them and there is no Non-
compliance thereof during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED

MANOJ K Digitally signed
by M.

ANOJ K

. RAMAVA ramavat
Manoj Ramavat Date: 2025.09.04
T 10:47:36 +05'30'

Managing Director
DIN: 11039927

Place: Thane

Date: 04.09.2025




DECLARATION OF UNMODIFIED OPINION

In terms of Regulation 33(3)(d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, we hereby declare that the Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s AR
Sodha and Co (ICAI Firm Registration No: 110324 W) Chartered Accountants have issued an Audit Report
with unmodified opinion on Audited Financial Results of the Company for the fourth quarter and financial
year ended March 31, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED
Digitally signed
MANOJ K by MANOJK
RAMAVAT
. RAMAVAT pate: 2025.09.04
Manoj Ramavat 10:47:59 +05'30'
Managing Director

DIN: 11039927
Place: Thane

Date: 04.09.2025




A.R. Sodha & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,
GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gravity (India) Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because
of the significance of the matter(s) described in the ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ section of our report,
the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements do not give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, and the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the statement of changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

We draw attention to Note no. 29 of the Financial Statements, which states that the financial statements
have been prepared on going concern basis. Considering the facts that Company ceasing its operations
since last 2 years, accumulated losses, significant liabilities and the company has not outlined any
concrete plans for recovery or continuation of operations, we are of the opinion that the use of the going
concern basis is inappropriate. The financial statement does not reflect the necessary adjustment that
would be required if the company were to prepare its financial statement on liquidation basis.
Accordingly in our opinion significant of the matter described above financial statements do not present
true and fair view in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

We draw attention to note no. 1.1.f to the financial statement regarding accounting of retirement benefit
in the form of Gratuity on Cash Basis, which is not in consonance with the requirement of Ind AS 19
L.e. “Employee Benefit”, which requires defined benefit obligation to be recognised based on actuarial
valuation basis. In absence of valuation, we are unable to quantify the impact of above on the net profit
for the year and liabilities as on reporting date.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our Adverse Opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.
,{%@ﬁ f(\\ 503-504, K. L. Accolade,

i?'%’EJ/ :Q\j ) 6th Road, Near Bank of Baroda, R. K. Hospital Lane,
A Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400 055.
Tel. : 9324743917 '
Email : ars@arsco.in




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

The Director’s Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report and hence we have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of The Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2ma ial misstatement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consi 59 tepsahNif, individually or in
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issues by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub section (11) of the section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the

Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs d 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable. :




2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Cash Flow dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 except as described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion paragraph.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
statements. Refer Note 29 of Financials statement.

ii.  According to the information given to us, the company has not entered into any long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company
or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

¢ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

® provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (ly@\@isstmemenh
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V.

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not declared
any dividend in terms of provision of section 123 of Companies Act, 2013.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197 (16) of

vi.

For A. R. SODHA & Ca.0;
Chartered Accow{

the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of
the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

As Stated in Note No. 30 to the accompanying standalone financial Statement and
based on our examination which include test check, except for instance mentioned
below the company in respect of financial year commencing on 1st April 2024, has
used accounting software for maintaining books of accounts which has features of
Audit trail facility and same have been operated throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

The company utilizes Tally Prime Edit Log as its accounting software, which includes
a mandatory audit trail feature to comply with MCA regulations. This feature has been
operational throughout the year, recording all relevant transactions. However, the
system is not encrypted with a password, nor has specific authorization been granted
to any personnel within the organization

Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior years has been preserved for record
retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in those respective years by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.
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Dipesh Sangoi
Partner

M. No 124295
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23rd April, 2025

UDIN: 25124295BMJALES47



ANNEXURE A TO AUDITORS’S REPORT

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

a) According to information and explanations given to us by the management and records
furnished before us, the Company has generally maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment.

b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management at reasonable intervals.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable with regard to the size of the company
and nature of assets. According to information and explanations given to us by the management,
no material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of records
furnished before us, the title of immovable property is in the name of the company.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of records
furnished before us, the company has not revalued property, plant & equipment or intangible
assets. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of Companies (Auditor’s) Report Order, 2020
is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of records
furnished before us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereof. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of Companies (Auditor’s) Report Order,
2020 is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our examination
of the records, the inventory comprising raw materials, finished goods, and stock-in-trade was
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. The Company
is generally maintaining proper records of inventory. During the year, the entire inventory was
identified as non-moving and obsolete, and accordin gly, it has been fully written off. As a result,
the closing inventory as at the balance sheet date stands at Nil. The accounting treatment of the
write-off appears to be appropriate and consistent with the applicable accounting framework.

b) Company does not have any active working capital limit during the year in excess of Rs.5
crores sanctioned on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of Companies (Auditor’s) Report Order, 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of records furnished
before us, the company has not granted unsecured loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships and other parties. The Company has not made investments in, provided any
guarantee or security to Companies, firms, Limited liability Partnerships or any other entities.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(iii) of Companies (Auditor’s) Report Order, 2020 is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has not given any loans or has made any investment or
ich compliance of Section 185 or 186

is required.



)

(vi)

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
section 73 to 76 from public during the year. Therefore, clause 3(v) of Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not required to
maintain cost records as specified under section 148 sub-section (1) of the Companies Act,

2013. Therefore clause 3(vi) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to
the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us,
Company is generally regular in depositing of undisputed statutory dues with respect to Income
Tax, Provident fund, Goods and Service Tax, etc expect delays, in payment of Tax Deducted
at source. Income tax demand of Rs.1.78 Lakhs for AY 2007-08 is outstanding for a period of
more than six months from the date it became payable as at the Balance Sheet date.

b) According to information and explanation given to us, there are no disputed statutory dues

relating to Income Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax or any other statute expect as stated
below.

Name of statute Nature of dues | Year(s) to which it| Amount Not |Forum where dispute

pertains Paid (Rs. in |is pending
Lacs)
Income Tax Act, TDS Defaults |AY 24-25 to 21-22 |4.99 Company is in process
1961 and prior of filing rectification

(viii)  According to information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company, the

(ix)

Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions previously unrecorded as income
in the books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, the

Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to lenders as at the Balance Sheet date. The details
of default is as follows.

Nature of Name of lender | Amount Whether No of Remarks
Borrowing not paid on | principal Days '
. | due date or interest | delay or
' ‘ unpaid ,

Term Loan | Ambit Finvest 3,35,028 ‘Both 30t0 90 -

Pvt Ltd
Vehicle Cholamanadalam | 1,19,700 -
Loan Investment and

Finance Co Ltd

with Assessing Officer.




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Also, there is ongoing dispute with the liquidator of bank for the one-time settlement amount
payable. For details refer note 28 to the financial statements.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company,
the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company,
no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long-term purposes by the company.

(¢) According to records examined by us, Company do not have any subsidiaries, associates or
Joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) & (f) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the
Company.

(a)According to information and explanation given to us by the management and records
furnished before us, the company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. Accordingly reporting under Clause 3(ix)(a) of Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company. ,

(b) According to information and explanation given to us by the management and records
furnished before us, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly reporting under Clause 3(ix)(b)
of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of
books and records of the Company, no fraud by the company or on the company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us by the management and records
furnished before us, no report under section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
the auditors in form ADT-4.as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with central government.

(¢) According to information and explanation given to us by the management and records
furnished before us, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the
year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence reporting under clause 3(xit) of Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as_required to be disclosed under
applicable Accounting Standard. &%N\

2/




(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Considering the nature and volume of the activity undertaken during the year management of
the company has not carried out Internal audit for the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not entered any
non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with them. Therefore, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(a) Considering the asset and income pattern, the company is not required to hold certificate of
registration under 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not conducted
any non-banking financial or housing finance activities without a valid certificate as per RBI
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the RBI. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the group does not have any CIC.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in year immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, and drawing attention to Note No.29 to the financial
statement indicating existence of material uncertainty that may cast a significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as going concern if strategic measures undertaken by the
management does not materialise as expected, we are of the opinion that company may not be
able meets its liability as and when fall due.

According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
financial statements of the company, provisions relating to Corporate social responsibility are
not applicable to the company in view of losses incurred by the Company. Accordingly, clause
3(xx) of the order is not applicable.

For A. R. Sodha & Co.

FRN 110324W

ore
Dipésh Sangoi

Partner
M No.124295

Qe

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23rd April, 2025

UDIN:

25124295BMJALES8475



ANNEXURE B TO AUDITORS’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gravity (India) Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAD).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai ly and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2 % able assurance that
in accordance with




generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

For the reason stated in Note 29 to financial statements, the company does not have an established
system of internal financial control over financial reporting with regards to assessment of possible
material adjustments that could arise / may be required to be made to the recorded values of assets and
liabilities. Consequently, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence so as to provide
a basis for our opinion as to whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively during the financial
year.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer Opinion paragraph
above, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion
whether the Company had adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and whether
such internal financial controls were operating effectively during the financial year. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit
tests applied in our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2025, and the disclaimer has affected our opinion on the financial statements of the
Company, and we have issued an Adverse opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

For A. R. SODHA & Co.

Chartered Accountzir),t«-::-i\

FRN 110324W /%\i\,?%\j\

@p\'&c\ {’,Q/" o

Dipesh Sangoi
Partner

M. No 124295
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23rd April, 2025

UDIN: 25124295BMJALES8475
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Gravity (India) Limited
Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2025

, Note 3ist March 2025 31st March 2024
Particulars
No Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
ASSETS
1 Non- Corrent Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 183.45 222,13
(b) Capital Work in Progress z.2 - -
(") Investment Property - -
{d) Financial Assets
(i} Other Financial Assets 3 13.62 13,18
(") Deferred Tax Assets (Nef) 4 248,08 213.72
445,14 449,02
2 Current Assets
() Inventories 5 - 172.58
{b) Financial Assets
) Investmenis - -
ii) Trade Receivables 6 31.93 24.90
iif) Cash and Cash Equivatents 7.1 16,28 5.51
iv) Other Bank Balances 7.2 2.80 2.61
v) Others Financials Assets 8 62.58 56,12
(€) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 6.69 6.69
(d) Other Carrent Assets 19 34,80 39.42
155.04 307.84
TOTAL ASSETS 600.23 756.80
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity Share Capital i 900.20 900.20
(b) Other Equity 12 (693.97) (493.40)
206.22 406.80}
LIABILITIES
1 Non-Current Liahilifies
() Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 13 91.19 99,32
ii)Other Financial Fiabilities - -
{b) Provisions - -
() Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net} 4 - -
(d} Other Non-current Liabilities i4 3.63 -
94,82 99,32
2 Current Linbilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 15 184.39 168.83
ii) Trade Payable 16
- Tatal Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 30.57 15.42
- Total Outstanding dues of other than Micro and Smalt
Enterprises 49.59 46.03
iii) Other Financial Liabilities - -
(b} Other Current Liabifities 17 3.67 6.78
(c) Provisions 18 28.20 10.64
{d) Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 14 2.77 3.02
299.19 250.74
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 608,23 756.86

As per our report of even date attached
For ARSODHA & CO. =%

Firm Registration No:110324W
Chartered Accountants?/

\w.»
Q{)
;

Partner
Membership No - 124295
MUMBAI

Date : 23rd April, 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

Bty SRR

¥ Vdrun Thakkar

Director
(D]N 0089414{!

f}f~/ ‘}f

JTay Thakar /

Dakshaben Thakkar

(DIN: 0057688446)

Divector
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Gravity (India) Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars Note 3ist Mar 2028 3ist Mar 2024
No. Rupees in Lakhs | Rupees in Lakhs
1 Revenue from operations 20 122.30 225.45
2 Other Tncome 21 74.60 2.14
3 Total Revenue 196.89 227.60
4 Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 429 142.95
Purchase of Stock in Trade 23 105.91 -
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade 24 168.29 167.25
Employee Benefit Expenses 25 52.10 77.25
Finance cost 26 13.64 17.98
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2.1 22.61 23.05
Other Expenses 27 65.00 615.44
Total Expenses 431.83 1043.93
5 Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (3 - 4) (234.94) {816.33)
6 Less : Exceptional items .
7 Profit / (Loss) before tax (5-6) (234.94) {816.33)
8 Tax Expenses
(a) Current tax - -
(b) Mat Credit Entitlement - -
(c") Short Excess Provision of Tax - -
(d) Deferred Tax (34.36) (199.99)
9 Profit / (Loss) After tax (7 -8) (200.58) {616.34)
10 Other Comprehensive Income
A Ttems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss - -
B Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss - -
C Tncome tax related to item not to be reclassified to P&L - -
D Income tax related to item to be reclassified to P&L - -
11 Total Comprehensive Income (9 + 10} (200.58) (616.34)
12 Earning per equity share (2.23) (6.85)
( Basic & Diluted)

Notes Forming Part of the Accounts
In terms of our report attached,
For A.R.SODHA & CO.

Dipesh Sangoi
Partnet
Membership No - 124295
MUMBAI

Date :23rd April, 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board

gv_}i LJ)"'},"]_‘ M\&

W L
arun Thakkar

Dakshaben Thakkar
Director Director
(DIN: 00894145} (DIN: 005768846)
" et e
T U Tholelz e
i'\.w. ™, . -
Jay Ti}aggﬁ:_ﬁ_u»--f"""“"""""
CFO ~




Gravity (India) Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars

A. {Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Loss } Before Tax
Adjusted for
Depreciation & Amortisation
Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables and Advances
Liabilities no longer required written back
Compensation against Extinguishment of Shares
Compensation on Compulsary Acqusition and Damages
Net Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Property Plant and Investment,
Interest & Finance cost
Interest Income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
{Inerease)/Decrease of Assets
Trade and Other receivables
Inventories
Other Non-current/Current assets
Increase/(Decrease) of Liabilities
Trade payable / Other Liabilities
Provision Non-current/Current
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes Paid

B. {Cash flow from investing activities

Interest Income

Compensation against Extinguishment of Shares
Compensation on Compulsary Acqusition and Damages
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment's

Sale of Propetty, Plant and Equipment's

C. {Cash flow from financing activities
Inflow

Increase/(Decrease) in bank borrowing -NET
Outflow

tuterest paid

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

(B)

(©

Note : The Above Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method's set out in

IND AS 7, Statement of Cash Flow

For A.R.SODHA & CO.
Firm Registration No:1 10%2;
Chartered Accountants/:

Dipesh Sangoi
Partner
Membership No :- 124295
MUMBAI

Date : 23rd April, 2025

2024-2025 2023-2024
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
(234.94) (816.33)
22.61 23.05
- 530.80
(33.62) -
{(19.00} -
(3.5%) -
(16.32) -
13.64 17.98
(0.64) {0,22)
(271.85) (244.72)
26.58 274.30
172,58 183.72
(2.47 68.82
(298.3%)
20.94 5.53
(38.65) (10.75)
(38.65) {10.75)
0.64 0.22
19.00 -
3.58 -
- (229
32.39 -
55,61 (12.06)
7.44 1.16
(13.64) (17.98}
(6.19) (16.82)
10.77 (39.63)
5.51 45,14
16,28 5.51
For and on behalf of the Board
G ‘ :
e =) AN ARy S
tun Thakkar " Dakshaben Thakkar
Director Director
p (DIN: 00894145) (DIN: 005768846)
,«_& - ’ ;J 'Jf :/?\,r” s e
L Jay Tlmkkﬁr
' CFO
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Gravity {India) Limited

Notes On Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2025

NoteNo: 1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Gravity (India) Limited {the Company) is a public Company, which was incosporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 13th March
1987 and has its registered office at Thane Bhivandi RD, Village Kalher Maharashtra. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of furnishing
fabrics. The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

The financiat statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 23rd April. 2025,

Note No: 1.1

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.L.a Statement of compliance _

These financial stalements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standasc (Ind AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ;2013 ('the
Act}{to the extent notified)The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Ruted of the Companie$ (Tndian Accounting Standards)
Rutes, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

1.1.b Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured af fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as exptained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction betiveen market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated vsing another
valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
Jmeasurement andfor disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share pased payment transactions tha
are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions thet are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities 1o fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable vatue in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36, In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are calegorised into Level 1, 2, o1 3 based on the degree fo which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows :

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inpuls are inputs, ofher than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or fiability.

1.1.c Revenue recognition

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable considegation) allocated to
that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discount
offered by the Company as part of the contract.

Revenue recognised from major business activities:

Salc of goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognised as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferzing control of the
promised goods to its customers

1.1.d Interest incomse

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 1o that asset's nel
carrving amount on ingtial recounition.

1.1.e Borrowing costs .

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the horrowing of funds. General and specific
borrowing costs directly atiributable fo the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 4o the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
1,1.f Emplayee benefits

. A iability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, and annual leave in the period the related service is
rendered af the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service, -

_ Liabitities recognised in respect of short-term empioyee benetits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefis expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service

- Paymets to defined contribution plan are charged to profit & loss account when contributions to respective funds are due

- defined benefit plan in respect of Gratuity Payments are accounted for on Payment Dasis.

1.1.g Taxation .

Cuzvent tax ; The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit ditfers from “profit before tax’ as reported in the
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax assets/liabilities for current year is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to and/ or recoverable from the tax authorities.
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Deferred tax : Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between (he carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax liabilities are generatly recognised for all taxable temporary
gifferences. Deferred tax assets are generally recopnised for all deductible temporary ditferences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utitised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are net recognised if the
ternporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred fax Siabilities and assets are measured at the fax rates that are expecied to apply in the period in which the Hability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax eates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reffects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and Habilities. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT}) paid in accordance with the tax
Jaws, which gives future economic beaefits in the form of adjustment to future income-tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing
evidence that the Company wiil pay normal income-tax. Accordingly, MAT Credit is recognised as asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that
future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Current and deferved tax for the year: Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income ot directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

1.1.h Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

"Properly, Plant and Equipinent are stated at cost of acquisition as reduced by accumulated depreciation and impainnent losses, if any, Cost comprises
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The Company has elected ta continue with the carrying value of all its PPE recognised as on April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that carrying value as its deemed cost as on transition date, Depreciation is provided on Strai ght Line Method on the basis of useful lives of such
assets specified in Schedule TT to the Companies Act, 2013 except the assels costing ¥ 5000/~ or below on which depreciation is charged @ 100%.
Depreciation is calcutated on pro-rata basis. The estimated useful life of the assets have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account
{he nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the aperating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological
changes, manufzciurers warranties and maintenance support etc.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capitat advances under
other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put o use before such date are disclosed under *Cepital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures
relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefis associated with these will flow to the
Company and the cost of the itern ¢can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and
loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset
and the resultant gains of losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets fo be disposed off are reported at the tower of the carrying
vatue or the fair value less cost to sell.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than frechotd land and properties wnder construction} less their residual values
over their usefil lives, using the straight-line method, The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed af the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

1.1,i Impairment of Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each batance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/externat factors. An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at the pretax discount rate reflecting
current market assessment of time vaiue of money and risks specific to asset.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining vseful life,

A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. However, the carrying value afler reversal
is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no inpairment,

1.1,j Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whicheves is fower. The cost in respect of the various items of inventory is computed as under: In
case of raw materials at weighted averape cost plus direct expenses. The cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present focation and condition.

In case of stores and spares at weighied average cost plus direct expenses. The cost inctudes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

fn case of work in progress at raw material cost plus conversion costs depending upon the stage of completion,

1n case of finished goods at raw material cost plus conversion costs, packing cost, non recoverable indirect taxes (if applicable) and other overheads
incurred to bring the goeds to their present location and condition.

In case of by-products at estimated reatizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated seliing price in ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
tn make the <ale

1.1.K Contingent liabilitics

"A contingent Hability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence witl be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recopnized because it is not prebable that an
outflow of resotrces will be required fo settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extzemely race cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements,

1.L1 Eqyning Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calcuiated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity sharehalders by the weighted average nuinker of
equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpoese of calculating diluted earings per share, the net profit for the period attributable so
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
cquity shares. In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that reduce profit/increase loss per share are
included i o

.




1.1.m Cash Flow Statement

'Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruats of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are seprepated based on the available information.

1.1.n Financial Instruments

(i) Tinancial Assels

(i) Initial recognition and measurement : All financial assets and liabilities are initialty recomized at fair vabue, Transaction costs that are directly
aftributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the
fair value on initial recognition, Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting

(ib) Subsequent Measurement ;

(l,a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) : A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to coltect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash Flows that are solely payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding

{ib.b} Financinl assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCK) : A financial asset is measured at FVTOC if it is held within
2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash tlows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ib.c)Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPLY: A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are
measured at FVTPL.

(ic) Investment In Subsidiaries, Associates And Joint Ventures

The Company Has Accounted For its Investinents In Subsidiaries, Associates And Joint Venture At Cost.

(i) Other Equity Investinents .

The Company subsequently measures all equily investments at Fair value. There are two measurement categories into which the company classifies its
equity instruments:

(id.a) Investmenis In Equity Instruments At FYTPL: Investiments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the company
irrevocable elects on initial recognition {o present subsequent changes in fair vaiue in other comprehensive income for equity instewments which are
not held for trading. .

(id.b) Investments In Equity Instruments At FYTOCT: On initial recognition, the company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if equity investment is
held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at Fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve for "Equity
Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income', The cumutative gain or loss is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of the
investiments.

(ie) Impairment Of Finaucial Assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those
measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). ’

FExpected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount egual fo:

(ie.) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possitle
within 12 months afler the reporting date); or .

(ie.b) Full lifetime expected credit losses {expected credit losses that result from afl possible defavlt events over the life of the financial instrument}

For trade receivables company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected fifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. the company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. at every reporting date these
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in oredit risk. If there is
significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

(if) De-Recognition Of Financial Instruments

The company desecognizes a financial asset when the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or if transfers the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recoynition under IND AS 109. A financial Habitity (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the
company's balance sheet when the oblization specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

(ii.2) Initial Recognition And Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cost, fee of recureing nature are directly
recognized in the statement of profit and loss ag finance cost.

(ii.0Y Subsequent Measurement
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments. ;
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Noie Ne.d AS AT AS AT
Other Financial Assets {Non Curvent) 3154 March 2025 | Jist Mavch 2024
In Rs. In Ry,
Unsecurad, Considered Goods:-
Securily Depasits
Other Deposit* 13.62 £3.18)
13.62 13.18
Nute Nod AS AT AS AT
Deferred tax assets/labilities (neg) ITSE AR 2025 | 315t Maveh 2027 |
In Rs. In Rs,
Deferred fnx assetsiabilities {ne) 148,08 213,72
HE.08 213.72¢°
Note Ne.§ ASAT ASAT
INVENTORIES 3 st Mared 20258 1 3Est March 2024
In Its, InRs.
Raw Maoterint - 4.2%
Finished Goods - S48
Stock in Trade - 161,81
- 172.58
Mote : inventory of taw material and fraded fabrics which are ne longer s safeable condition has been marked down o Zeco
s € ut anlicipate neglipible realisable valus.
Note No.6 ASAT ASAT
FINANCIAL ASSETS 315t March 2025 | 31st March 2024
In Rs. In Ks.
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Receivable from related purties
Unsecured Considered good 20.24 29,24
Receivable fom oflsevs
Secured considered good
Unsecured Considered good
Oulstanding for peried nol exceeding 6 Months 24.98 15,99
Quistanding for period oxceeding & Montbs 436.82 827.89
Doubtfial - -
Less Allowasnices for Expected Credit Loss (439.£0) (548.23)
- 31,93 24.90
Note No.g. 1 AS AT AS AT
31st Mavch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule I Rs. In Rs,
Undisputed Trrde Receivable - Considered good
Less ll:an 6 Months 24.98 15.99
6 Months to § Yea - -
1102 Years - {0529
2ta 3 Years 97,10 253.56,
More (han 3 Years 324.97 178.53
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doubtful
Less than 6 Months - B
6 Months fo 1 Year - -
Lo 2 Years - -
2to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Yes “ -
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered pood
Less than G Months - -
6 Monlls lo | Year - -
11e2 Years - -
2103 Years - -
tore than 3 Years L6 14,76
Disputed Trade Receivable - Cousidered Doubifial -
Less than 6 Months - -
6 Months ta 1 Year - -
1402 Years - -
Z103 Years . -
More than 3 Years - £.89
461,80 573,13

EM/




‘{'Rupees in Lakhs)

Note No.? AS AT AS AT
31st Mavch 2025 | 31st March 2024
TINANCIAL ASSETS In Its. In Rs,
7.1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balance with Bank .
Cusrent Bank Account 15,38 .03
Cash in Hand 0.90 548
16,28 5.5
7.2 Other Bank Balances
In: Fined Deposits . .80 2.61
Less Ameuns disclosed as other financiat non currenl assets . -
2.80 2.61
19,07 8.12
Naote No.8 ASAT AS AT
Jst March 2025 | 31st March 2024
TINANCIAL ASSETS In Rs. In Rs.
ber Finaeind Assets
{Unsecured and Considered Goou}
Advance to Ernployees and others 0,90 2.03
Advances 1o Supplicrs 61,69 -
(Unsecared amd Considered Doubifut)
Advances to Suppliers 78.61 20.70
Reimburseinent of Expenses Receivable from Related Parties 339 3.39
Less :- Expected Credit Loss 41,99} -
5=2=.58 56,12
Note No.9 AS AT ASAT
3ist MEaveh 2025 | 31st Mareh 2024
Cuarrent Tax In Rs, In Rs.
Current Tax Assels (Net) - -
MAT Credit Entitlement 6,69 69
5,69 6.69
Note No.10 ASAT AS AT
3ist March 2025 | 3ist DMarch 2024
Other Current Assels In Rs. In Rs,
Balance with Government Authorities * 3210 36,40
TDS Deducted recoverable from Lender L.80 1.80
Prepaid Expenses 0.91 522
34,80 39.42
* Balance wilh government authorities contains GST-TC
Note: (1 AS AT AS AT
st Marclh 2025 | 31st Mareh 2024
Equity Slrare Capital In Rs. In s,
Authorised
1,50,00,000 (PY 1,50,08,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 1500.00 150000
1500.00 1560001
issued, Subseribed and Paid-Up
90,01,950 (PY 90,01,950} Equniy Shares of Rs.10/- each Pully Paid 900,240 960.20]
Total 200,20 990,20

a) Riglats, Preferences and vestrictions attached te shaves

is entitled to ons vote per share.

distribution witi ba in proportion to the nuniber of equity shates held by the shareholders.

‘The Company has only one class of shates referced fo as equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10/-, Bach holder of equity shares

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will s entitles to receive my of the remaining assels
of the commpany, afler disfribution of all preferential amounts. However, Mo such I'referential amaunts exist currently, The
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b) The veconciliation of the number of shares oufstanding and the awmount of share capital as at March 31, 2105 amd

March 31, 2024

kst March 2025

345t March 2024

Pavticutars
Numbers Rs,

Nunbers Rs,

Al the beginning of the Period

90,01,630 2,00,19,500

SU,01,950 9,00,19,500

Less:- Utelised/iransferred during

Add:+ Issued During Lhe Ieriod - -

Outstanding af eal of fhe Perdod

90,015,950 5,00,19,500

90,611,950 9,00,19,500

¢) Details of Sharebholder Holding ware than 5% Shares

318t Mgl 2025

3lst March 2024

Particnlar:
articulars Nunbers % Hoelling Nuwbers % Holding

'V arun Thakkat 937,125 10.41% 10.12,125 11.24%

Dakshaben Thakkar 4,71,75¢ 9.68% 471,751 W.684%

d} Details of sleaves held by promoters at the end of the Year

315t March 2025

31s¢ March 2024

Particubars

Nunbers % Holding Numbers % Holding
1 Varun Rasiklat Thokkar 37125 10.41% 10.12,125 11.24%
2 Dakshaben Thakkar 371751 92.68% ®, 11,751 9.68%
3 Sair Rasiklal Thukkar 138368 2.09% 188,308 2.00%
4 jRasikial Dalptram Thakkar 30388 0.66% 59,588 2.66%
5 |Jay Rasiklol Thakkar 42197 T4 42.107 13.46%
i Raxiklal DD Thakkar (HUF) 5600 DA% 3400 B.05%
Gravily Syntreies Pyi L4d (Promisters
7 Group) Lus 0.091% L% 0,001 %
("Runees in Lakhs)
Note : 12 AS AT ASAT
31st Maurch 2025 | Isi March 2024
Deher Equily In Rs, Tt Rs.
Retnined Emnings {493.40): £22.55
Current year Eamings . {200,58) (614.34)
TOTAL (623,97 (433,40)
Note No.13 ABAT ASAT
31st March 2025 | 3ist March 2024
Borepwings (Non Current} In Bs. in Rs.

Finmcial Linbilities
Secured

Term lonn [rom Finaneial Institetion 88,16 92,47
Vehicle L.oan from Financial Enstilution 1L35 14.22]
Less ; Cumrent Malurily of Long term Bomowings (8.32) {1370
91,14 99.32

91,19 99‘33

Terny Loan from Financis! Institulion is secured by way ol Exclusive First Charge on the Indusirial Premises a1 Dadea
and Nagar Haoveli and it is repayable in 129 monthly Instolment and presenl interest rate is 16.85% pa. and elTective

interest rate is 18.22% p.a

Vehicle loan is secured against the respective vehicle. Tt is repayable i 60 menlhly instalment and carries interest rate

of 11% p.a and effective interest eale is 12.29% o0

Note N, L4 ASAT AS AT

3Usthlarch 2025 | 3ist Mavch 2024
Now Current Liabilitics In Rs. In Rs,
Security Deposits 3.63 -

3.63 -

Nute Ne.15 AS AT ABAT

31st Blavch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Rorvowings {Curvent) In Bs. InRs,
Secured
Lomn Seltbement amowst Pavable to Bank (Refer Note 28 for more details)* 155.46 155,46
Curmrent Malusily of Long term Borrowings : 8.32 71.37
Loan frem: Directer . 20.61 600
*Secured by way of 2nd Cliarge on the Industiial Premises !

184.3% 168.83




Note No.16 AS AT ABAT
3Est March 2025 | 31st Mavel 2024
Trade Payables In Rs. In Rs.
- Total Quistanding dues of Micro and Sruall Egterprises 30,57 1542
- Total Quistnding dues of other than Micro and Small Enlerprises 49.59 46,05
80.I5 6147
Ageing of Trade Payalle ASAT AS AT
31st Mavch 2025 { 31st March 2024
In Rs, In Rs,
(i)  Tolat Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
Less than 1 Year 1543 14.49;
1-2 Years 14.20 0.93
2.3 Years 0,93 -
More than 3 Years
36,57 18,42
()} 'Total Outstanding dues of other than Micre and Smalt Fnterprises
Less than | Year 1.54 .65
1-2 Years 1,69 0,22
2-3 Years 0.18 0,09
More than 3 Years 45,18 45.09
49,59 36,05
Total 80,15 61,47
Note No.17 ASAT AS AT
31st March 2025  3ist March 2024
Otlier Current Liabilities InRs, In Rs,
Audit Fees Payable 1,34 2,718
Stalutory remittances*® - 2.28
DS Payable 1.33 1,71
Other Payable - 0.04
3.67 6,78
* Statutory Remitiance inciudes Tax Deduction/Collection at Sources & Contribution to Providest fund,
Nete No.18 AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | st Mavch 2024
Provisions (Current) In fis, In Rs.
Prrovision fer Employees Benefits 18.84 10.64
Provision for Expenses 9.36 -
28.20 10.64
Note No.I9 ASAT ASAT
31st March 2028 | 3ist March 2024
Provistons {Cuvrent) In Rs. InRs.
Provision for Income Tax an 3.0
277 3.02




{'Rupees in Lakhs)
Note No.20 AS AT AS AT
: 31st March 2025 { 31st March 2024 In
Revenue from Operations In Rs. Rs.
Sale of Products (Net of Rebate & Discount) 122.30 225,45
122.30]. 225.45
Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with customers' outlines a single comprehensive control based madel for revenue
recopnition, The Company had not applied any significant judgements in applying the revenue recognition criteria, The disclosure
requirements as per Ind As 113 given below:-
# The following is an analysis of the companies revenue from its products and services
AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st Mareh 2024 In
Particulars In Rs. Rs.
Sales of Furnishing Fabric/Yam 122.30 . 22545
122.30 225,45
The following is analysis on the Companies revenue disaggregates on the basis of timing of revenue recognition
AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
Particulars In Rs. Rs.
- At Point of Time 122.30 225.45
- Over the Period - -
122.30 225.45
Naote No.21 AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
OTHER INCOME : : In Rs. Rs.
1 Interest Income 0.64 0.22
2 Other Non Operating Income
Rent Income 1.43 1.92
3 Other Incomes 72.53 W
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 10.15 -
Compensation against Extinguishment of Shares 19.00 -
Compensation for Structure Damages on Compulsory Acquisition 3.58
Gain on Compulsary Acquisition of Land 6.17 -
Discount received from Suppliers 0.02 -
Provision for Expected Credit Loss no Longer required Written Back 33.62 -
Total 74.60 2.14
Note No.22 . AS AT AS AT
31st Mareh 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
Cost of Material Consumed: In Rs. Rs.
Opening Stock of Material 4,29 20,76
Add:- Purchase of Materials (Net of Return & Trade Discounts) ’ - 126.48
. 429 147.24
Closing Stock of Material - 4,29
Total 4.29 142.95
Note No.23 AS AT AS AT
‘ 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
Purchase of Stock in Trade In Rs. Rs.
Grey Fabric {Net of Discount on Purchase) 105.91 -
Others
Total ' 105.91 -
Note No.24 AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock in Trade In Rs. Rs.
Inventories af beginning of the Year 168.29 335.54
Less - Inventories at end of the Year - -168.291
Total 168.29 IAGCT28)
Note : Inventory of raw material and traded fabrics which are no longer in saleable condition has been marked down to'Zero;
management anticipate negligible realisable value. . B




('Rupees in Lakhs)
Note No.25 AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
In Rs, Rs.
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES !
Salaries and wages 48.12 72.99
Contribution to Provident & other funds 342 2,60
Staff Welfare Expenses 0,56 2.26
52,10 77.25
Note No.26 AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
In Rs. 1ts.
FINANCE COST : -
Interest Expenses 13.64 17.98J
13.64 17.98
Note No.27 AS AT AS AT
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
In Rs. Rs.
OTHER EXPENSES :
Advertisement Expense 1.17 L.60
Auditors Remuneration 2.60 2.60
Consumable Stores - 2.27
Directors Sitting Fees 0.16 0.18
Discount allowed to customer 0.37 340
Factory Expense 4.99 6.66
Listing Fees & Charges 4.04 4.85
Office Expense 10.40 17.76
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 9.15 92.66
Power & Fuel 23.41 31.04
Professional Charges 3.52 2.39
Rate and Taxes 3.85 0.55
Rent 1.35 1.67
Expected Credit Loss of Financial Assets - 530.80
65.00 615.44




'('Rupees in Lakhs)

Note No.28 ASAT AS AT
3Est March 2025 | 31st March 2024 In
Contingent Liabilities and commitments In Rs. Rs. ‘
Income Tax (TDS- Traces Demands) 4,99 4.99
Loan Dispute {Refer note below) 365.22 365.22
Total 370.21 370.21
Note :-

Company's Loan facility declared as non performing long back in 1998. The bank from which company
had taken the loan was gone into Hqudation and its banking licensed was cancelled in 2012, The
ligudator of bank has floated the Setttlement scheme of 2013 to offer the OTS facility for all borrowers
whose accounts were become NPA after 1993. As per the Scheme amount payable is Principal
Qutsatndingon NPA date, plus interest and cost and charges and adding debits other than accrued interest
and Interest from 1.4.10 @6%p.a. till the date of payment of amount. Accordingly company calulated the
amount and paid Rs.624.08 Lakhs. However liquidator has objected to the amount payable stating that as]
per scheme for all borrowers appointed date of NPA is fixed as 31.3.2001 and according to lquidator
amount payable comes to Rs,1144.76 Lakhs in case of company. Company objected to the said amount
and filed the petetion in the Court. Court informed to settle the dispute in the arbitration proceedings.
Arbitration award was granted in favor of the company on 3rd September, 2016. Liquidator filed the
Commercial Arbitration petition challanging the Arbitration award in the Bombay High court. on 25th
March 2019 order has been passed by the Court setting aside the Arbitration award. Again company has
filed Appeal against the Arbitration petition Order in the Bombay Highcourt in July 2019. The Bombay
highcourt has admitted the appeal on 14th February, 2020. After that no hearing has happend and matter
is subjudice. According to Company and legal adivsor only Rs.155 Lakhs will be further payable andr
same is already shown as current financial liability.

Note 29 : Material Uncertainity related to Geing Concern

The Company has incurred significant losses during the year, resulting in the erosion of its net worth and
Insignificant revenue from operations. In response, the Company has begun realizing a portion of its
Property, Plant & Equipment, re-evaluating its trade reccivables, loans, trade payables, and advances.r
Additionally, Company has fully written down the value of non-moving traded fabric inventories to zero.
Despite these financial challenges, the financial statements has been prepared on a going concern basis.
Management is actively pursuing recovery of receivables and implementing strategic measures aimed at
stabilizing operations and restoring financial health. However, if these measures do not yield the expected
outcomes, there exists a material uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going;
concern.

Note 30: Audit Trail - Edit Log

The Company uses Accounting Software (Tally Prime Edit Log) for maintainces of books of accounts
which has a feature of recording audit trail facility and same has operated throughout the year for all the
relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software




31  Related Party Disclosures
a) List of Related Parties & Relationship:-

i. ey Management Personnel (JKMP) :-

Varun Thakkar (Managing Director)
Jay.R.Thakkar (CFO)

Shreya Chawak (Company Secretary)
Dakshaben.R. Thakkar ( Director)

Samir Bipinkumar Ruparelia ( Director)

Komal Hardikkumar Pate! ( Additonal Director)
Geetanjali Kumari { Company Secretary)

Dipti Kadam

ii, Relatives of KMP :-
Rasiklal Thakkar
Dakshaben.R, Thakkar

iii. Enterprise in which KMP & Relative has Substantial Interest
Gravity Textiles Pvt Led
"Rammaruti Textile Pvt Ltd
Dakshali Synthetics Pyt Ltd
Radha Textiles
Jay Textiles
Shivani Textiles

{'Rupees in Lakhs)
Enterprise in
which Relative of
Nature of Transaction KM?P Relatives of | KMP and KMP Total
KMP has
control/significant
Influence

Remuneration CY 11.40 - - 11.40

PY. £1.40 - - 11,40
Director Sitting Tees

CY. .16 - - 0.16

P.Y. 0,18 - - 0.18
Rent Received CY - - - - b

PY. - ) 1.92 - 1.92
Loan Taken CY 50.44 - - 50.44

‘ P.Y. 17.47 B - 17.47

Loan Repaid CY 29.91 - - 2991

PY. 23.46 - ‘ - 23.46
Outstanding Balance included in
‘Trade Payables CcY 1.06 : - - 1.06

PY, 28.16 - - 28.16
Director Sitting Fees

C.Y. 6.12 - - 0,12

PY, 0.08 - - (.08
Loan Payable

CY. 20.61 - - 20.61

PY. 6.00 - - 6.00
Trade Receivables / Advances CY.

P.Y,
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Summary of Financial Ratios

Financial Rafios

(ix)

(%

(i)

(viii) Met Capital Turnover Ratio

Net Profit Ratio

Return on Captial Empfoyed

Return on Investment

Average Trade Payable

Revenue from operations
Working Capital

Net Profit After Taxes
Revenue from operations

EBIT
Capitat Employed (Net worlh +Debt)

EBIT
Total Assets

Sr . Asat 3ist " Asat3lst ) Reasons for Deviation above
P 5, .
No articutars March, 2025 | March, 2024 | 7% OF Veriance 25%
(i) |{Current Ratio 0.52 1.23 -57.78% ] For ()40 GHD.(.(vili)
(ii} [Debt- Equity Ratio 1.35 0,66 105.419%|Net Loss due to Marking down
(iii} | Debt Service Coverage Ratio (10,09) (31.06) -67.53% Var‘\;{‘l" ,‘ff""“’ Moving Stock
- * to Nil Value.
(iv) [Return on Equity Ratio (0.65) (0.86) -24.09% ¢
(v) |Inventory Turnover Ratio 3,23 1.17 175.12%| For (v (ix).{xn(xi
{vi} | Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 4.30 .53 716.0:3% | Profitability improved due to
(vii) | Trade Payabie Turnover Ratio 1.53 1.24 23,2191 FEEOVEY f?m éeblorslanfd
- - corresponding reversal o
(viii}iNet Capital Turnover Rateo (0.85) 3.95 ~121.49% | cartier provisions.
(ix) |Net Profit Ratio {1.64) {2.73) 40.01%| Additional gain was realised
{x) |Return on Captial Employed {0.46) {1.18) 61.46%|Fom the sale of Property,
H )
(i) |Return on Investment (0.37) (1.05) 65.05% Plant, and Bquipment (PPE).
Ratio Definition
(i) Current Ratio Current Assels
Current Liabilities
(i) Debt- Equity Ratio Debt
Total Equity
(iii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earmings for Debt service { Refer note 1 below)
Debt Service (Reter note 2 below)
(iv) Return on Equity Ratio Met Profit After Taxes
. Average Sharcholder's Equity
(v)  Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Production + Changes in lnventories
Average Taventory
(vi} Trade Receivable Turnover Ratic  Revenue from operations
Average Trade Receivables
(vii) Trade Payable Tugnover Ratic Revenue from operations

Qo=
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CIN L17110MH1987PLC04899
Name of the Gravity (India) Limited
Company

Corporate Office Shree Rajlaxmi Commercial Complex, Bildg No.”Q”, Gala No.17,Thane
Bhiwandi Road, Village Kalher,Bhiwandi 421302

EVSN 136671

User ID Existing members may refer to current password and new members are
requested to refer E-voting instructions.

Password Members holding shares in demat form should enter 16 digits beneficiary
ID, and Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter folio Number
registered with the Company

Note: E-Voting will commence on Friday 27t September 2025 (9:00 AM) and end on Sunday 29th
September 2025 (5:00 PM)

Please refer to the E-Voting Instructions prior to casting your votes through e-voting,




GRAVITY (INDIA) LIMITED

GALA NO. Q-17,SHREE RAJLAXMI COMMERCIAL COMPLEX,
OLD BHIWANDI THANE ROAD,
VILLAGE KALHER,TALUKA BHIWANDI,
DIST. THANE 421302.
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	To Consider and Approve Appointment of CA Kamlesh Dave, DDM & Associates ( FRN – 133446W) as a statutory Auditor of the Company for the period of Five years from Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30.
	Item No.:4 : Appointment of Secretarial Auditor
	To Consider and Approve Appointment of CS Krina Shah , Company Secretary in Practice  ( ACS – 66521 , CP No. - 27764) as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the period of Five years from Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30.
	Item No.: 5 : To Regularize Appointment of Manoj Ramavat
	To regularize appointment of Manoj Kanhiyalal Ramavat (DIN: 11039927) who has been appointed as an additional Director of the Company and designate him as Managing Director.’
	Item No.: 6 : To Regularize Appointment of Ambika Jindal
	To regularize appointment of Ambika Jindal (DIN: 10310252) who has been appointed as an additional Director of the Company and designate her as Non-Executive Independent Director.’
	Item No.: 7 : To Regularize Appointment of Tushar Rai Sharma
	To regularize appointment of Tushar Rai Sharma (DIN: 09211414) who has been appointed as an additional Director of the Company and designate him as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.
	Item No.: 8 : To Regularize Appointment of Komal Hardikkumar Patel
	To regularize appointment Komal Hardikkumar Patel [DIN: 10911964] who has been appointed as an Additional Director and designate her as an Independent Director.
	SPECIAL BUSINESS
	THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-
	C. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
	D. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS
	EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING NOTICE
	DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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	RISKS AND CHALLENGES
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	5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
	6. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
	7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
	8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
	9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
	l) SHARE TRANSER SYSTEM:
	CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025:
	o) COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES:
	p) PLANT LOCATIONS:
	q) ADDRESS FORCORRESPONDENCE:
	OR
	10. OTHER DISCLOSURES:
	11. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE II HAVE BEEN ADOPTED:
	12. THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 SHALL BE MADE IN THE SECTION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT:
	FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	MANOJ RAMAVAT
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